

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from electronic originals
(may include minor formatting differences from printed original)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE

ONE HUNDRED AND TWENTIETH LEGISLATURE

FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
November 13, 2002 to November 14, 2002

ONE HUNDRED AND TWENTY-FIRST LEGISLATURE

FIRST REGULAR SESSION
December 4, 2002 to June 14, 2003

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST SPECIAL SESSION
NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS
FEBRUARY 13, 2003

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST REGULAR SESSION
NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS
SEPTEMBER 13, 2003

PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,
TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4.

Penmor Lithographers
Lewiston, Maine
2003

to certification as a teacher, to licensure as a speech pathologist or to attainment of child care provider qualifications and who has met other eligibility criteria established by rule of the authority.

Sec. 9. 20-A MRSA §12506, 2nd ¶, as enacted by PL 1989, c. 7, Pt. O, §5, is amended to read:

These loans ~~shall~~ must only be used to substitute or replace the family contribution or interest-accruing loans. A loan recipient may not receive student financial assistance in excess of the cost of attendance.

Sec. 10. 20-A MRSA §12507, as amended by PL 1999, c. 783, §5, is further amended to read:

§12507. Repayment and return service provisions

Each ~~graduating high school senior or college student who receives a loan may cancel the total amount of the loan by completing one year of return services~~ service in the public schools or private schools approved for tuition purposes in the State for each year the individual receives a loan. An individual who received that individual's first program loan after January 1, 2000 may also cancel the total amount of the loan by completing one year of return service by working in a child care facility. The return service requirement is one year for every 2 years or less that the individual receives a loan if return service is performed in an underserved subject areas or in educator shortage areas area. Return service for this purpose must be performed within 5 years of graduation from the institution of higher education. If the chief executive officer grants a deferment, the time period for performance of return service may be extended for the same period as the deferment. Return service may not be credited for the same semester for which an individual receives a loan pursuant to this chapter. Pro rata loan forgiveness may be granted for part-time return service as determined by rule of the authority. Failure to fulfill the return service option necessitates repayment to the authority as follows.

1. Debt calculation. The debt must include the total amount of the loan and interest at the rate established by rule of the authority, less the amount, if any, that has been cancelled by return service.

2. Time for repayment. The total debt must be repaid to the authority within ~~40~~ 11 years of graduation from the institution of higher education according to a schedule established by the chief executive officer. Due dates for repayments are set by the chief executive officer and may be extended for the same period of any deferment granted by the chief executive officer.

3. Deferment. A recipient of a loan may seek a deferment of the annual payments for a period or periods as established by rule of the authority. A

request for deferment must be made to the chief executive officer who shall make a determination on a case-by-case basis. The chief executive officer may grant a deferment in the event that a recipient of a loan evidences intent to teach and inability to secure employment necessary to obtain forgiveness of the loan at the time the deferment is sought. The chief executive officer shall require certification of the intent annually and grant a ~~one-year~~ deferment for each successful request for deferment for a period not to exceed one year. A recipient may not receive more than 5 one-year deferments. ~~The decision of the chief executive officer is final~~ may establish limits to the number of deferments that may be granted to any recipient by rule of the authority.

~~**4. Child development students.** A child development student may fulfill a return service requirement under this section by working in a licensed day care center or for a certified home day care provider, as defined in Title 22, section 8301-A.~~

5. Death or disability. The authority may forgive loans of loan recipients who have died or who have become permanently disabled, as determined by the chief executive officer.

Sec. 11. 20-A MRSA §12508, as amended by PL 1999, c. 441, §11, is repealed.

Sec. 12. 20-A MRSA §12511 is enacted to read:

§12511. Rules

Rules adopted by the authority pursuant to this chapter are routine technical rules as defined in Title 5, chapter 375, subchapter 2-A.

Sec. 13. Promissory note. Educators for Maine loans under the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, chapter 428 may be originated using a master promissory note that allows all Educators for Maine loans provided over a period of up to 7 years to be originated on the same promissory note.

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 428

H.P. 1100 - L.D. 1507

**An Act To Clarify and Update the
Laws and Rules Related to Health
Care**

Emergency preamble. Whereas, Acts of the Legislature do not become effective until 90 days after adjournment unless enacted as emergencies; and

Whereas, rules governing the Community Health Access Program have been drafted and are under review by the Department of Human Services; and

Whereas, current law designates those rules as major substantive rules and subject to legislative review before final approval; and

Whereas, the rules will not be provisionally adopted before adjournment of the Legislature; and

Whereas, this Act designates the rules as routine technical rules to allow the Community Health Access Program to become operational before the Legislature reconvenes next January; and

Whereas, in the judgment of the Legislature, these facts create an emergency within the meaning of the Constitution of Maine and require the following legislation as immediately necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety; now, therefore,

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

PART A

Sec. A-1. 24-A MRS §2850-B, sub-§3, ¶¶G and H, as enacted by PL 1997, c. 445, §30 and affected by §32, are amended to read:

G. When the carrier ceases offering a product and meets the following requirements:

- (1) In the large group market:
 - (a) The carrier must provide notice to the policyholder and to the insureds at least 90 days before termination;
 - (b) The carrier must offer to each policyholder the option to purchase any other product currently being offered in the large group market; and
 - (c) In exercising the option to discontinue the product and in offering the option of coverage under division (b), the carrier must act uniformly without regard to the claims experience of the policyholders or the health status of the insureds or prospective insureds;

(2) In the small group market:

- (a) The carrier shall replace the product with a product that complies with the requirements of this section, including renewability, and with section 2808-B;

(b) The superintendent shall find that the replacement is in the best interests of the policyholders; and

(c) The carrier shall provide notice to the policyholder and to the insureds at least 90 days before replacement; or

(3) In the individual market:

(a) The carrier shall replace the product with a product that complies with the requirements of this section, including renewability, and with section 2736-C;

(b) The superintendent shall find that the replacement is in the best interests of the policyholders; and

(c) The carrier shall provide notice to the policyholder and, if a group policy, to the insureds at least 90 days before replacement; or

H. In renewing a large group policy in accordance with this section, a carrier may modify the coverage, terms and conditions of the policy consistent with other applicable provisions of state and federal laws as long as the modifications are applied uniformly to all policyholders of the same product. ~~This paragraph does not apply to individual or small group policies; or~~

Sec. A-2. 24-A MRS §2850-B, sub-§3, ¶I is enacted to read:

I. In renewing an individual or small group policy in accordance with this section, a carrier may make minor modifications to the coverage, terms and conditions of the policy consistent with other applicable provisions of state and federal laws as long as the modifications meet the conditions specified in this paragraph and are applied uniformly to all policyholders of the same product. Modifications not meeting the requirements in this paragraph are considered a discontinuance of the product pursuant to paragraph G.

(1) A modification pursuant to this paragraph must be approved by the superintendent. The superintendent shall approve the modification if it meets the requirements of this section.

(2) A change in a requirement for eligibility is not a minor modification pursuant to this paragraph if the change results in the exclusion of a class or category of enrollees currently covered.

(3) Benefit modifications required by law are deemed minor modifications for purposes of this paragraph.

(4) Benefit modifications other than modifications required by law are minor modifications only if they meet the requirements of this subparagraph. For purposes of this subparagraph, changes in conditions or requirements specified in the policy, such as preauthorization requirements, are considered benefit modifications.

(a) The total of any increases in benefits may not increase the actuarial value of the total benefit package by more than 5%.

(b) The total of any decreases in benefits may not decrease the actuarial value of the total benefit package by more than 5%.

(c) For purposes of the calculations in divisions (a) and (b), increases and decreases must be considered separately and may not offset one another.

(5) A carrier must give 60 days' notice of any modification pursuant to this paragraph to all affected policyholders and certificate holders.

PART B

Sec. B-1. 24 MRSA §2317-B, sub-§15-A, as enacted by PL 2003, c. 156, §1, is amended to read:

15-A. Title 24-A, section 2809-A. ~~Notice of cancellation and availability of individual coverage Conversion on termination of policy or eligibility, Title 24-A, section 2809-A, subsections 1-A and 1-B;~~

Sec. B-2. 24-A MRSA §2809-A, sub-§1-A, as amended by PL 2003, c. 156, §§2 and 3, is further amended to read:

1-A. Notification of cancellation. ~~An insurer must provide by first class mail at least 10 days' prior notification of cancellation for nonpayment of premium may not cancel or refuse to renew any policy for hospital, surgical, dental or major medical expense insurance until the insurer has provided by first class mail at least 10 days' prior notification according to this section. The notice must include the date of cancellation of coverage and, if applicable, the time period for exercising policy conversion rights. The notice also must include an explanation of any applicable grace period.~~ Notification is not required when the insurer has received written notice from the

group policyholder that replacement coverage has been obtained.

A. Notice must be mailed to the group policyholder or subgroup sponsor.

B-1. At the time of notification under paragraph A, notice must be mailed to the certificate holder at the last address provided to the insurer by the subgroup sponsor, ~~or the group policyholder to the insurer unless~~ or the certificate holder. ~~If the insurer does not have an address on file for the certificate holder, the notice must be mailed to the office of the subgroup sponsor, if any, or the group policy holder.~~ The notice must also include information to the certificate holder about the availability of individual coverage as described in subsection 1-B.

~~C. Notice must be mailed to the bureau.~~

Sec. B-3. 24-A MRSA §4209, sub-§6, as amended by PL 2003, c. 156, §5, is further amended to read:

6. Notification of cancellation. A health maintenance organization ~~must provide by first class mail at least 10 days' prior notification of cancellation for nonpayment of enrollment charges may not cancel or refuse to renew any group contract until it has provided by first class mail at least 10 days' prior notification~~ according to this section. The notice must include the date of cancellation of coverage and the time period for exercising contract conversion rights. The notice also must include an explanation of any applicable grace period. Notification is not required when the ~~insurer~~ health maintenance organization has received written notice from the group contract holder that replacement coverage has been obtained.

A. Notice must be mailed to the group contract holder or subgroup sponsor.

B-1. At the time of notification under paragraph A, notice must be mailed to the individual enrollee at the last address provided to the health maintenance organization by the subgroup sponsor ~~or the group contract holder to the health maintenance organization unless~~ or the individual enrollee. ~~If the health maintenance organization does not have an address on file for the individual enrollee, the notice must be mailed to the office of the subgroup sponsor, if any, or the group contract holder.~~ The notice must also include information to the individual enrollee about the availability of individual coverage as described in section 2809-A, subsection 1-B.

~~C. Notice must be mailed to the Bureau of Insurance.~~

PART C

Sec. C-1. 24-A MRSA §1901, sub-§1, as amended by PL 1999, c. 609, §2, is further amended by amending the first paragraph to read:

1. "Administrator" means any person who, on behalf of a plan sponsor, health care service plan, health maintenance organization or insurer, receives or collects charges, contributions or premiums for, or adjusts or settles claims on residents of this State in connection with any type of life, annuity, health or workers' compensation or employee benefit excess insurance benefit provided in or as an alternative to insurance as defined by sections 702 to 704, former Title 39 or Title 39-A, other than any of the following:

PART D

Sec. D-1. 24-A MRSA §2803-A, sub-§2, as amended by PL 2001, c. 410, Pt. B, §1, is further amended to read:

2. **Disclosure of basic loss information.** Upon written request, every insurer shall provide loss information concerning a group policy or contract to its policyholder or former policyholder within 21 business days of the date of the request. This subsection does not apply to a former policyholder whose coverage terminated more than 18 months prior to the date of a request.

PART E

Sec. E-1. 24 MRSA §2327, as amended by PL 1985, c. 648, §2, is further amended to read:

§2327. Group rates

~~No A~~ A group health care contract may not be issued by a nonprofit hospital or medical service organization in this State until a copy of the group ~~manual~~ rates to be used in calculating the ~~rates~~ premium for these contracts has been filed for informational purposes with the superintendent. The filing must include the base rates and a description of any procedures to be used to adjust the base rates to reflect factors including but not limited to age, gender, health status, claims experience, group size and coverage of dependents. Notwithstanding this section, rates for group Medicare supplement, nursing home care or long-term care contracts and for certain group contracts included within the definition of "individual health plan" in Title 24-A, section 2736-C, subsection 1, paragraph C must be filed in accordance with section 2321.

Sec. E-2. 24-A MRSA §2839, as amended by PL 1985, c. 648, §11, is further amended to read:

§2839. Rates filed

~~No A~~ A policy of group health insurance may not be delivered in this State until a copy of the group ~~manual~~ rates to be used in calculating the premium for these policies has been filed for informational purposes with the superintendent. The filing must include the base rates and a description of any procedures to be used to adjust the base rates to reflect factors including but not limited to age, gender, health status, claims experience, group size and coverage of dependents. Notwithstanding this section, rates for group Medicare supplement, nursing home care or long-term care insurance contracts and for certain association groups and other groups specified in section 2701, subsection 2, paragraph C must be filed in accordance with section 2736. Rates for small group health insurance subject to section 2808-B are subject to the additional filing requirements specified in that section.

PART F

Sec. F-1. 24 MRSA §2321, sub-§1, as amended by PL 1997, c. 344, §6, is further amended to read:

1. **Filing of rate information.** Every nonprofit hospital and medical service organization shall file with the superintendent, ~~except as to group subscriber and membership contracts other than group Medicare supplement contracts as defined in Title 24-A, chapter 67 and group nursing home or long-term care contracts as defined in Title 24-A, chapter 68,~~ every rate, rating formula and every modification of any of the foregoing that it proposes to use in connection with individual health insurance contracts, group Medicare supplement contracts as defined in Title 24-A, chapter 67, group nursing home or long-term care contracts as defined in Title 24-A, chapter 68 or 68-A, and certain group contracts included within the definition of "individual health plan" in Title 24-A, section 2736-C, subsection 1, paragraph C. Every filing under this subsection must state the effective date of the filing. Every filing under this subsection must be made not less than 60 days in advance of the stated effective date unless the 60-day requirement is waived by the superintendent for a period of time not to exceed 30 days. In the case of a filing that meets the criteria in subsection 4, the superintendent may suspend the effective date for a longer period not to exceed 30 days from the date the organization satisfactorily responds to any reasonable discovery requests. ~~In the case of nursing home and long-term contracts, rates filed are effective for no more than 3 years, except that rates for contracts with guaranteed level premiums are effective for the duration of the contract.~~

Sec. F-2. 24-A MRSA §2736, sub-§1, as amended by PL 1997, c. 344, §8, is further amended to read:

1. Filing of rate information. Every insurer shall file with the superintendent, ~~except as to group policy rates other than those for group Medicare supplement policies as defined in chapter 67, and group nursing home care and long term care insurance as defined in chapter 68,~~ every rate, rating formula, classification of risks and every modification of any formula or classification that it proposes to use in connection with individual health insurance policies and certain group policies specified in section 2701. Every such filing must state the effective date of the filing. Every such filing must be made not less than 60 days in advance of the stated effective date, unless the 60-day requirement is waived by the superintendent, and the effective date may be suspended by the superintendent for a period of time not to exceed 30 days. In the case of a filing that meets the criteria in subsection 3, the superintendent may suspend the effective date for a longer period not to exceed 30 days from the date the organization satisfactorily responds to any reasonable discovery requests. ~~In the case of nursing home care and long term care insurance policies, rates filed are effective for no more than 3 years, except that rates for contracts with guaranteed level premiums are effective for the duration of the contract.~~

PART G

Sec. G-1. 24 MRSA §2317-B, sub-§20, as enacted by PL 1999, c. 256, Pt. M, §10, is amended to read:

20. Title 24-A, chapters 68 and 68-A. Long-term care insurance, nursing home care insurance and home health care insurance, Title 24-A, ~~chapter chapters 68 and 68-A.~~

Sec. G-2. 24-A MRSA §2691, sub-§3, ¶D, as enacted by PL 2001, c. 410, Pt. C, §1, is amended to read:

D. Long-term care insurance policies subject to ~~chapter chapters 68 and 68-A;~~

Sec. G-3. 24-A MRSA §2701, sub-§2, ¶A, as amended by PL 1995, c. 332, Pt. J, §1, is further amended to read:

A. Sections 2736, 2736-A and 2736-B apply to group Medicare supplement policies as defined in chapter 67 ~~and~~ ² group nursing home care and long-term care insurance policies as defined in chapter 68 ~~or 68-A;~~

PART H

Sec. H-1. 24-A MRSA §1951, sub-§2, as corrected by RR 2001, c. 2, Pt. B, §42 and affected by §58, is amended to read:

2. Private purchasing alliance. "Private purchasing alliance" or "alliance" means a corporation ~~licensed pursuant to this section~~ established under former Title 13-A, Title 13-B or Title 13-C to provide health insurance to its members through one or more participating carriers.

Sec. H-2. 24-A MRSA §1952, as enacted by PL 1995, c. 673, Pt. A, §3, is amended to read:

§1952. Licensure

~~A person or entity~~ private purchasing alliance may not market, sell, offer or arrange for a package of one or more health benefit plans underwritten by ~~2~~ ² one or more carriers without first being licensed by the superintendent. The superintendent shall specify by rule standards and procedures for the issuance and renewal of licenses for private purchasing alliances. A rule may require an application fee of not more than \$400 and an annual license fee of not more than \$100. A license may not be issued until the rulemaking required by this chapter has been undertaken and all required rules are in effect.

Sec. H-3. 24-A MRSA §2736-C, sub-§5, as enacted by PL 1993, c. 477, Pt. C, §1 and affected by Pt. F, §1, is amended to read:

5. Loss ratios. For all policies and certificates issued on or after the effective date of this section, the superintendent shall disapprove any premium rates filed by any carrier, whether initial or revised, for an individual health policy unless it is anticipated that the aggregate benefits estimated to be paid under all the individual health policies maintained in force by the carrier for the period for which coverage is to be provided will return to policyholders at least 65% of the aggregate premiums collected for those policies, as determined in accordance with accepted actuarial principles and practices and on the basis of incurred claims experience and earned premiums.

Sec. H-4. 24-A MRSA §2747, sub-§1, as enacted by PL 1981, c. 205, §2, is amended to read:

1. Any insurer denying medical expense reimbursement benefits on any of the grounds specified in subsection 2 for a claim filed pursuant to a policy issued under this chapter, other than a policy that is subject to section 4312, shall provide the policy or certificate holder with an opportunity to have the denial reviewed by the insurer and to arbitrate the denial if not satisfied after review. The right to review and arbitrate ~~shall~~ must be prominently set forth in any written notice sent to the policy or certificate holder denying the claim. The arbitration ~~shall be~~ is non-binding and ~~shall~~ must be carried out in accordance with procedures established by the insurer.

Sec. H-5. 24-A MRSA §2808-B, sub-§1, **¶D**, as amended by PL 2001, c. 258, Pt. E, §3 and c. 400, §1 and affected by §2, is repealed and the following enacted in its place:

D. "Eligible group" means any person, firm, corporation, partnership, association or subgroup engaged actively in a business that employed an average of 50 or fewer eligible employees during the preceding calendar year.

(1) If an employer was not in existence throughout the preceding calendar year, the determination must be based on the average number of employees that the employer is reasonably expected to employ on business days in the current calendar year.

(2) In determining the number of eligible employees, companies that are affiliated companies or that are eligible to file a combined tax return for purposes of state taxation are considered one employer.

(3) A group is not an eligible group if there is any one other state where there are more eligible employees than are employed within this State and the group had coverage in that state or is eligible for guaranteed issuance of coverage in that state.

(4) An employer qualifies as an eligible group for 2-person coverage if the employer provides a carrier with the following information demonstrating that the employer's business and employees meet the minimum qualifications for group coverage in paragraph C:

(a) A copy of the most recent quarterly combined filing for income tax withholding and unemployment contributions, Form 941/C1-ME;

(b) For an employee claimed to be an employee eligible for group coverage whose name is not listed on Form 941/C1-ME, a copy of the employer's payroll records for the most recent 3 months showing tax withholding or a wage report from a payroll company showing wages paid to that employee for the most recent quarter with tax withholding;

(c) If an employer is exempt from filing Form 941/C1-ME for group coverage, documentation of that exemption and a copy of the employer's payroll records for the most recent 3 months showing tax withholding or a

wage report from a payroll company showing wages paid to that employee for the most recent quarter with tax withholding; or

(d) If the name of the business owner or employee does not appear on Form 941/C1-ME, a copy of one of the following:

(i) Federal income tax Form Schedule C or Schedule F;

(ii) Federal income tax Form 1120S, Schedule K-1;

(iii) Federal income tax Form 1065, Schedule K-1;

(iv) A workers' compensation insurance audit or evidence of a waiver of benefits under Title 39-A;

(v) A description of operations in a commercial general liability insurance policy or equivalent insurance policy providing coverage for the business; or

(vi) A signature card from a financial institution or credit union authorizing the employee to sign checks on a business checking or share draft account that is at least 6 months old; a notarized affidavit from the employer describing the duties of the employee and the average number of hours worked by the employee and attesting that the employer is not defrauding the carrier and is aware of the consequences of committing fraud or making a material misrepresentation to the carrier, including a loss of coverage and benefits; and, if the group coverage is purchased through a producer, a notarized affidavit from the producer affirming the producer's belief that the employer qualifies as an eligible group for coverage.

In determining if a new business or a business that adds an owner or a new employee to payroll during the course of a year qualifies as an eligible group for 2-person coverage under this subparagraph, the employer must submit an affidavit stating that all employees meet the criteria in this subpara-

graph and that the documentation and forms required under this subparagraph will be provided to the carrier when payroll records become available, when ownership distribution forms become available or the first renewal date of the coverage, whichever date is earlier. A false affidavit or misrepresentation on an affidavit submitted by an employer may result in the loss of group coverage and repayment of claims paid. This subparagraph may not be construed to prohibit a carrier from recognizing an employer as an eligible group if the employer has not produced the documentation required in this subparagraph.

This subparagraph applies only to an employer applying for group health insurance coverage as a 2-person group on or after October 1, 2001.

Sec. H-6. 24-A MRSA §4331, sub-§4, as enacted by PL 1999, c. 609, §20, is amended to read:

4. Downstream risk arrangement. "Downstream risk arrangement" means ~~any compensation an arrangement between that transfers insurance risk from~~ a carrier ~~and to~~ a downstream entity ~~that may directly or indirectly have the effect of reducing or limiting services furnished to enrollees of the carrier.~~

Sec. H-7. 24-A MRSA §5011, sub-§2, as enacted by PL 1991, c. 740, §13, is amended to read:

2. Discounts. Issuers that do not vary rates for a standardized plan based on age, gender, health status, claims experience, policy duration, industry or occupation, and that do not refuse issue of that plan to any individual or group based on health status, may provide discounts on that plan to individuals who purchase coverage during their initial period of ~~eligibility for enrollment in Medicare Part A by reason of age B at or after 65 years of age,~~ subject to approval by the superintendent. The superintendent may adopt rules governing the appropriate use of discounts.

PART I

Sec. I-1. 22 MRSA §3192, sub-§7, as enacted by PL 2001, c. 439, Pt. BBB, §1 and affected by §3, is amended to read:

7. Community health plan corporation excess insurance. In order to ensure adequate financial resources to pay for medical services allowed in the benefit plans developed by community health plan corporations, a local community health plan corporation is required to enter into agreements with insurers licensed in this State to obtain community health plan corporation excess insurance and to provide coverage for those portions of the health care benefits package

that expose the corporations to financial risks beyond the resources of the corporation. The department may develop rules to provide further options for community health plan corporations to maintain financial solvency. Participation in the Medicaid program satisfies the requirement of this subsection. Rules adopted pursuant to this subsection are ~~major substantive routine technical~~ rules as defined in Title 5, chapter 375, subchapter ~~H-A~~ and ~~must be reviewed before final approval by the joint standing committee of the Legislature having jurisdiction over health insurance matters 2-A.~~

Sec. I-2. 22 MRSA §3192, sub-§8, ¶C, as enacted by PL 2001, c. 439, Pt. BBB, §1 and affected by §3, is amended to read:

C. The department may seek a waiver from the Federal Government as necessary to permit funding under the Medicaid program to be used for coverage of Medicaid-eligible individuals enrolled in a plan offered by a community health plan corporation. The department may adopt rules required to implement the waiver in accordance with this paragraph. Rules adopted pursuant to this paragraph are ~~major substantive routine technical~~ rules as defined in Title 5, chapter 375, subchapter ~~H-A~~ and ~~must be reviewed before final approval by the joint standing committee of the Legislature having jurisdiction over health insurance matters 2-A.~~

Sec. I-3. 22 MRSA §3192, sub-§14, as enacted by PL 2001, c. 439, Pt. BBB, §1 and affected by §3, is amended to read:

14. Rules. The department shall adopt rules establishing minimum standards for financial solvency, benefit design, enrollee protections, disclosure requirements, conditions for limiting enrollment and procedures for dissolution of a community health plan corporation. The department may also adopt any rules necessary to carry out the purposes of this section. Rules adopted pursuant to this subsection are ~~major substantive routine technical~~ rules as defined in Title 5, chapter 375, subchapter ~~H-A~~ and ~~must be reviewed before final approval by the joint standing committee of the Legislature having jurisdiction over health insurance matters 2-A.~~

Emergency clause. In view of the emergency cited in the preamble, Part I of this Act takes effect when approved and Parts A to H take effect 90 days after approval of this Act.

Effective June 5, 2003, unless otherwise indicated.
